

United States Attorneys Bulletin



*Published by Executive Office for United States Attorneys
Department of Justice, Washington, D.C.*

Vol. 22

July 26, 1974

No. 15

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
POINTS TO REMEMBER	503
ANTITRUST DIVISION	
SHERMAN ACT	
Motions for bills of particulars, to discuss indictment and grand jury transcripts denied highway construction company.	<u>U.S. v. Calhoun County Contracting Corp., et al</u> 507
CIVIL DIVISION	
EXHAUSTION OF ADMINISTRATIVE REMEDIES	
Fifth Circuit refuses to enjoin Federal Trade Commission proceedings despite allegation of lack of jurisdiction.	<u>American General Insurance Company, et al. v. Federal Trade Commission, et al.</u> <u>(C.A. 5)</u> 510
GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES	
Ninth Circuit upholds pro- cedures for emergency sus- pension of Federal employees on authority of Arnett v. Kennedy.	<u>Temple v. Bushell (C.A. 9); Francois v. Bushell</u> <u>(C.A. 9)</u> 510
MILK MARKETING	
Seventh Circuit holds that before defenses may be raised in action to enforce milk marketing order they must first be raised in section 8(c)(15) administrative proceedings.	<u>U.S. v. Lamars Dairy, Inc., et al. (C.A. 7)</u> 511

	<u>Page</u>
NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT Fifth Circuit upholds congressional power to remove a highway project from requirements of NEPA and reaffirms "independent utility" test to determine necessity for environmental impact statement.	<u>Named Individual Members of the San Antonio Con- servation Society, et al. v. Texas Highway Depart- ment & U.S. Department of Transportation, et al. (C.A. 5)</u> 512
CRIMINAL DIVISION NARCOTICS Border Searches: Body Searches	<u>U.S. v. Hugh Franklin Murphree (C.A. 9)</u> 514
Expert testimony un- necessary to show prescriptions written by medical doctor were issued without a legitimate medical purpose in order to sustain conviction under 21 U.S.C. 841(a)(1) and 846.	<u>U.S. v. Harry F. Larson, M.D. (C.A. 9)</u> 515
OFFICIAL IMMUNITY Dismissal of action against presidential assistant based on doctrine of immunity; doctrine not applied to volunteer advanceman.	<u>Nathan Gardels v. Peter C. Murphy, William Henkel</u> 516
APPENDIX Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure	
RULE 7(c) The indictment & the information. Nature & contents.	<u>U.S. v. Raul Miranda</u> 519
RULE 16(f) Discovery & Inspection. Time of Motions.	<u>U.S. v. David L. Lincoln</u> 521

	<u>Page</u>
RULE 32(b)(1) Sentence & Judgment. Judgment. In General.	
RULE 35 Correction or reduction of sentence.	
RULE 36 Clerical mistakes. <u>U.S. v. Juan Munoz- Dela Rosa</u>	523
RULE 35 Correction or reduction of sentence. <u>U.S. v. Donald Grimm Johnson</u>	525
<u>U.S. v. Hon. William O. Mehrtens</u>	526
<u>U.S. v. Gary Lee Mack</u>	526
<u>U.S. v. Juan Munoz- Dela Rosa</u>	526
RULE 36 Clerical mistakes. <u>U.S. v. Juan Munoz- Dela Rosa</u>	527
LEGISLATIVE NOTES	L1

POINTS TO REMEMBERKIDNAP - EXTORTION CASES; POLICY

In the past few months there has been a marked increase in the number of extortion attempts involving the kidnaping or attempted kidnaping of a business executive (or family member) which have been directed at the business community. The FBI investigates abductions under the Federal kidnaping Statute (18 U.S.C. 1201). However, in many cases, a Federal kidnaping prosecution is not possible because the investigation fails to produce proof of the requisite Federal jurisdictional elements (interstate transportation, etc.). In many of these situations, the Hobbs Act (18 U.S.C. 1951) may provide a suitable alternative for prosecution by the Federal Government.

The Hobbs Act provides in part:

(a) Whoever in any way or degree obstructs, delays, or effects commerce or the movement of any article or commodity in commerce, by robbery or extortion or attempts or conspires so to do, or commits or threatens physical violence to any person or property in furtherance of a plan or purpose to do anything in violation of this section shall be fined not more than \$10,000 or imprisoned not more than 20 years, or both.

Under the Hobbs Act, Federal jurisdiction is predicated upon the extortion or attempted extortion having an actual or potential affect on interstate commerce. It is not dependent upon the use of any instrument of commerce to communicate the threat as is required in extortion prosecutions under 18 U.S.C. 875 and 876. Thus, the impact or potential impact of the extortion upon interstate commerce is a critical factor in considering a Hobbs Act prosecution. In many cases it is not clear to whom the extortionate demand is addressed (i.e. to the business enterprise or to the business executive in his personal capacity). In the latter case, the Department takes the position that there is no violation of the Hobbs Act even if the executive chooses to resort to funds of his interstate business to meet the extortionate demands. Where there is ambiguity in this connection, the interstate commerce element of the offense should be evaluated in light of the circumstances of the particular extortionate demand, including whether the threat was made directly or indirectly upon the interstate business and whether the extortionist contemplated or should have known that interstate business funds would be used to pay the ransom.

It follows from the above that the Department also takes the view that the extortioner must intend or at least have reason to know that his demand will have a direct effect on interstate commerce. Thus a demand on a business executive in his personal capacity does not become a violation of the Hobbs Act by virtue of the fact that the executive neglects, interrupts or discontinues his functions as an executive in order to comply with the demand made upon him. Nor would a demand upon a political entity become a violation of the Hobbs Act because as a result thereof the entity is deprived of funds which would otherwise be expended for the purchase of goods which move in interstate commerce.

Even when a violation of the Hobbs Act is indicated, it should be remembered that local authorities often have charges which could be brought in these situations that are more comprehensive than available Federal charges. In the Attorney General's letter of April 23, 1974 to all United States Attorneys concerning Federal-State Law Enforcement Committees, he stated that cooperation with state and local law enforcement officials should be "predicated on Federal efforts encouraging local prosecution, not only of those cases with minimal Federal interest, but of all cases with strong state or local interest." This does not mean that every case should be brought in state court if at all practicable, but that the interests of each jurisdiction should be carefully weighed in deciding whether a case should be prosecuted locally or federally.

Some of the considerations which should go into the decision as to which forum is preferable are:

Whether or not the state is interested in proceeding; whether the state has sufficient manpower to accomplish the task; the relative sentences which would likely be imposed following state or Federal prosecution; the presence of an informant; the use of electronic surveillance, or other exceptional investigative techniques which might present disclosure problems in either jurisdiction; and, the pendency of other criminal charges against the defendant in a particular forum.

In general, however, the primary consideration should be which jurisdiction can get to trial more expeditiously with the most effective prosecution and achieve the greatest result in terms of imprisonment and deterrence.

If a kidnap-extortion case should arise in your District, and it is believed that the Federal Kidnaping and extortion statutes are inapplicable, but that nevertheless it may be

desirable to charge a violation of the Hobbs Act, the General Crimes Section should be consulted prior to the filing of such charges (as is required in cases involving an extortionate demand of a bank or airline. United States Attorney's Bulletin, Vol. 19, No. 19, September 19, 1971). Attorneys familiar with these matters may be contacted at FTS 202-739-2745. It is recognized that in some cases, because of emergency circumstances, such as imminent danger of life or limb, it is not practicable to consult the Criminal Division prior to filing a complaint and making an arrest. However, this should be done as soon as practicable after such event. Furthermore, prior to returning an indictment under the Hobbs Act, the Management and Labor Section must be notified.

EXTRADITION

The Government Regulations Section of the Criminal Division has been assigned responsibility for coordinating all requests for extradition and foreign judicial assistance in criminal matters.

As you are aware, these matters necessarily involve our foreign relations and, accordingly, all communications regarding these matters must be made through appropriate channels, including the Department of State. Therefore, requests and inquiries regarding these areas should be directed to the Government Regulations Sections, and any contact with the Department of State, United States embassies and consulates, and any foreign ministry, embassy, consulate or representative regarding these matters, should be made only through the Government Regulations Section.

LABOR-MANAGEMENT REPORTING AND DISCLOSURE ACT

All United States Attorney's and Organized Crime Strike Forces are reminded that under section 504 of Title 29, United States Code, any person who has been convicted of conspiracy or substantive violations involving robbery, bribery, extortion, embezzlement, grand larceny, burglary, arson, violation of narcotics laws, murder, rape, assault with the intent to kill, assault which inflicts grievous bodily injury, or a reporting violation under Title 29, United States Code, sections 439, 461, or 463 is prohibited from serving as 1) an officer or employee (other than one performing exclusively clerical or custodial duties) of any labor organization, or 2) as a labor relations consultant or as an employee of any employer association for five (5) years following either a final such conviction or the end of

any prison term resulting from such final conviction. In addition any labor organization or officer thereof who knowingly permits any person to hold the positions described above violates section 504. A willful violation of section 504 carries a term of one year in prison and/or a \$10,000 fine.

As noted in Title 2, page 155 of the United States Attorneys' Manual, a procedure has been adopted whereby the individual in violation and the chief executive officer of his appropriate organizations are notified of section 504's prohibition and given the opportunity to terminate any prohibited relationship prior to the initiation of prosecution. To facilitate this procedure and promote uniformity of application it is requested that the United States Attorneys and Organized Crime Strike Forces notify in writing the Criminal Division, Management-Labor Section, of any future conviction in their respective districts involving any labor organization officer or employee, any labor relations consultant, or other person described in section 504. Such notification should include a copy of the pertinent indictment or information, the judgment of conviction, order of sentence, and any notice of appeal pertaining to the offending individual. Copies of any letters of notification from the Criminal Division, Management-Labor Section, will be returned to the appropriate United States Attorney or Strike Force which furnished the required information.

(Criminal Division)

*

*

*

ANTITRUST DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Thomas E. Kauper

DISTRICT COURT

SHERMAN ACT

MOTIONS FOR BILLS OF PARTICULARS, TO DISCUSS INDICTMENT
AND FOR GRAND JURY TRANSCRIPTS DENIED HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION
COMPANY.

United States v. Calhoun County Contracting Corporation
et al., (S-CR 74-6; June 17, 1974; DJ 60-206-47)

On January 17, 1974, a grand jury for the Southern District of Illinois at Springfield, Illinois, returned 7 indictments, charging a total of 22 highway construction companies and four of their officers with a violation of Section 1 of the Sherman Act. Each indictment alleges a bid rigging conspiracy on highway construction projects in violation of Section 1 of the Sherman Act. Captioned case is one of the seven indictments, charging five corporate defendants with bid rigging on an Illinois highway construction project on which the State received bids on January 24, 1969. The five defendants are: Calhoun County Contracting Corporation, Sangamo Construction Company, Bituminous Fuel & Oil Co., Caldwell Engineering Company, and H. H. Hall Construction Co.

According to the indictment, the defendants agreed to:

- . . . allocate among each other a specific project let by the State of Illinois in connection with the construction of a federally assisted highway; and
- . . . submit collusive, noncompetitive, and rigged bids to the State of Illinois in connection with such construction.

All five defendants filed motions for Bills of Particulars. Defendants Calhoun and Caldwell additionally moved to dismiss the indictment alleging that it failed to state facts which constitute an offense and that it failed to allege interstate commerce since the companies indicted and the highway projects are within Illinois. Defendants Hall and Bituminous moved for production of the grand jury transcripts of all employees of each defendant, alleging that the transcripts were necessary to prepare a defense and to impeach, refresh, and discredit witnesses, and show "matters occurring before the

grand jury." Defendants also sought to have the Government identify in advance of trial jobs other than that named in the indictment as rigged, if the Government intended to prove similar past rigged jobs as part of its proof of the job specified as having been rigged.

The Government objected to the motions for Bills of Particulars on the grounds the defendants sought the Government's evidentiary detail and litigation plans, and that the defendants were improperly attempting to limit the Government's proof at trial.

The Government filed a Voluntary Bill of Particulars with its memorandum opposing the motion which, in narrative form, set forth the particular highway project involved, the known co-conspirators and the substance of the agreement among the defendants and co-conspirators. The court, in denying the defendants' motions for particulars, held the Bill of Particulars voluntarily supplied, together with broad documentary discovery voluntarily provided by the Government, was adequate to inform defendants of the charges against them and to protect against double jeopardy.

The Government responded to the motion to dismiss by pointing out that the indictment on its fact stated facts sufficient under Rule 7(c) to inform each defendant of the charges against it and to protect each defendant from being placed in jeopardy more than once. The Government also pointed out it was supplying a Voluntary Bill of Particulars. The Government further argued that vehicular roads are instrumentalities of interstate commerce and that the indictment clearly stated facts alleging an effect on interstate commerce under either the "in" commerce or "effect" commerce theories. The district court denied the motion to dismiss.

The Government argued that the grounds set forth by defendants in support of their motions for production of all grand jury transcripts, to impeach or discredit witnesses and to prepare a defense were not based on fact but on mere speculation and did not show any particularized need as required by the Dennis and Costello cases. The district court denied these motions.

The Government was ordered by the trial court to identify any instances of similar prior, illegal conduct or past similar acts which would be introduced into evidence by the Government to prove the acts charged in the indictment.

Trial of this case will commence on July 29, 1974,
in Springfield, Illinois.

Staff: Thomas S. Howard, Richard J. Braun,
Eugene J. Jeka, Allyn A. Brooks and
Michael I. Kurtz

*

*

*

CIVIL DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Carla A. Hills

COURT OF APPEALS

EXHAUSTION OF ADMINISTRATIVE REMEDIES

FIFTH CIRCUIT REFUSES TO ENJOIN FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS DESPITE ALLEGATION OF LACK OF JURISDICTION.

American General Insurance Company, et al. v. Federal Trade Commission, et al. (C.A. 5, No. 73-2905, June 27, 1974; D.J. 102-1649.

The Federal Trade Commission instituted administrative proceedings under the Clayton Act against two insurance companies, one in Texas and one in Maryland, which recently merged. The companies alleged during the Commission proceedings that the Commission lacked jurisdiction because of the McCarran-Ferguson Act which generally insulates the business of insurance from federal regulation. The Commission held that it did not lack jurisdiction to proceed, whereupon the companies brought suit in federal district court to enjoin the Commission from proceeding further against them. The district court denied the requested relief, and further held on the merits that the McCarran-Ferguson Act did not oust the Commission's jurisdiction. The companies appealed.

The Government's principal argument on appeal was that the plaintiffs had failed to exhaust their administrative remedies. The Court of Appeals accepted this argument and affirmed. The court held that even though the companies' claim of lack of jurisdiction was strictly legal in nature, extraordinary cause was not demonstrated to justify deviation from the well-settled requirement of exhaustion.

Staff: Neil H. Koslowe (Civil Division)

GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES

NINTH CIRCUIT UPHOLDS PROCEDURES FOR EMERGENCY SUSPENSION OF FEDERAL EMPLOYEES ON AUTHORITY OF ARNETT v. KENNEDY.

Temple v. Bushell, (C.A. 9, No. 71-1834); and Francois v. Bushell, (C.A. 9, No. 71-2135); D.J. Nos. 35-11-48; 145-5-3521; decided July 1, 1974.

Plaintiffs (Temple and Francois) were suspended from their jobs with the Post Office Department under the emergency procedures authorized when the agency has reasonable cause to believe that an employee "is guilty of a crime for which a sentence of imprisonment can be imposed" (5 C.F.R. 752.202(c)(2)). Pursuant to these procedures, the agency furnished to plaintiffs 24 hours advance notice of suspension and afforded both the opportunity for an informal hearing. In each instance, the agency ordered an emergency suspension within approximately two weeks after the alleged employee misconduct, and without a prior trial-type hearing, which was to follow the suspensions.

Plaintiffs then independently sought immediate review in the district court, contending that the emergency suspension procedures were unconstitutional in not providing a trial-type hearing prior to suspension. The district court in each case denied relief. (In Temple the Court dismissed for failure to exhaust administrative remedies; in Francois the court denied a preliminary injunction on the ground that the procedures satisfied due process.)

On Plaintiffs' consolidated appeal, the Ninth Circuit affirmed both district courts, holding that Arnett v. Kennedy, (No. 72-1118), decided April 16, 1974) "directly addressed and rejected appellants' constitutional arguments" (Op. 2). (Kennedy sustained the procedures available for ordinary removals and suspensions.) In view of that holding, the court of appeals found it unnecessary to resolve the exhaustion question.

This decision by the Ninth Circuit thus confirms the government's view that the Kennedy ruling is dispositive also of the issue of the validity of the procedures available for emergency suspensions of federal employees in the competitive service.

Staff: William Kanter (Civil Division)

MILK MARKETING

SEVENTH CIRCUIT HOLDS THAT BEFORE DEFENSES MAY BE RAISED IN ACTION TO ENFORCE MILK MARKETING ORDER THEY MUST FIRST BE RAISED IN SECTION 8(c)(15) ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING.

United States v. Lamars Dairy, Inc., et al., (C.A. 7, No. 73-1889, July 10, 1974; D.J. 106-85-79 and 106-85-80).

The government brought an enforcement action in district court under Section 8(a)(6) of the Agricultural Marketing Agreement Act of 1937 as amended, to require two handlers to make the payments required of them under the milk marketing

order for the Chicago region. The defendants asserted that they were not handlers as defined by the Act, and raised various constitutional challenges to the order. The government moved for summary judgment, arguing that under United States v. Ruzicka, 329 U.S. 287, such defenses may not be raised in an enforcement action but instead must be presented in an administrative proceeding under Section 8(c)(15) of the Act. The district court denied the motion but certified the question for interlocutory appeal under 28 U.S.C. 1292(b).

The Seventh Circuit allowed the interlocutory appeal and reversed and remanded the case to the district court. The court of appeals held that under Ruzicka the only forum in which defendants may raise such issues is an administrative proceeding under Section 8(c)(15), and that they may not raise them initially in an 8(a)(6) enforcement action.

This decision thus reaffirms the government's longstanding position that proceedings to enforce milk marketing orders are summary proceedings in which defenses may not be raised initially.

Staff: Barbara L. Herwig (Civil Division)

NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT

FIFTH CIRCUIT UPHOLDS CONGRESSIONAL POWER TO REMOVE A HIGHWAY PROJECT FROM REQUIREMENTS OF NEPA AND REAFFIRMS "INDEPENDENT UTILITY" TEST TO DETERMINE NECESSITY FOR ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT.

Named Individual Members of the San Antonio Conservation Society, et al. v. Texas Highway Department and U.S. Department of Transportation, et al., (C.A. 5, No. 74-1231, July 5, 1974; D.J. 89-76-2).

Conservationists brought suit to enjoin construction of a highway through parklands in San Antonio until an environmental impact statement was filed. Although the highway had originally been a federal-aid project, the state had returned all federal funds for this particular segment and Congress had enacted a bill severing the federal government's involvement with this portion of the road. The district court granted the government's motion to dismiss and the Fifth Circuit affirmed.

The court held that Congress had intended to and could specifically remove a project from the requirements of NEPA and that to do so does not violate due process by discriminating against residents of one particular area. In addition, the court held that the fact that the road will connect with other

federal highways does not make it a federal project, since the proposed road has an "independent utility" of its own -- connecting the downtown area to the airport.

Staff: Judith S. Feigin (Civil Division)

*

*

*

CRIMINAL DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Henry E. Petersen

COURT OF APPEALS

NARCOTICS

BORDER SEARCHES: BODY SEARCHES

United States v. Hugh Franklin Murphree (C.A. 9, No. 73-3393, decided May 13, 1974; D.J. 12-017-12).

In an unanimous decision, a three-judge panel of the 9th Circuit upheld the conviction of Hugh Franklin Murphree for violation of 21 U.S.C. 952 and 963, importation and conspiracy to import heroin.

Defendant Murphree and two companions entered the United States through the primary pedestrian inspection lanes at San Ysidro, California, port of entry. The inspector, after learning they were together, noticed they were nervous and appeared to have chalky complexions. The inspector further noted that they had been in Mexico only a short time and that, while all three lived in the United States, none lived in California.

At this point, all three individuals were taken to a secondary inspection area where they were patted down for weapons. During the patdown, the inspector noticed a more rapid than normal heartbeat in all three individuals. The inspector then asked the three to roll up their sleeves, which they did; whereupon needle marks, some recent, were found on the inside of the elbow joints of all three. The defendants' companion admitted to past use of heroin; however, denied current use. The defendant made no comment. It was further learned that this was the second entry made by the three individuals on this date.

A strip search was then conducted of all three, whereupon the defendant was found to be carrying a quantity of heroin in a body cavity. The appellant was indicted and convicted of illegally importing heroin following a motion to suppress the fruits of the strip search.

As the motion to suppress, the defense contended that at the time Murphree was required to roll up his sleeves and expose his arms to the inspector there was not "real suspicion" to justify a strip search, as required by Henderson v. United States, 390 F.2d 805, 808 (9th Cir. 1967). Judge Belloni, writing for the court, stated that border inspectors may require

persons entering the United States to roll up their sleeves even though the inspectors do not have real suspicion of smuggling directed to the individual. The basis of so holding is due to the fact that few, if any, of the considerations of personal privacy and dignity which confronted the court in Henderson v. United States, supra, were present in this case inasmuch as exposure of the arms in public is a common practice for the majority of persons living in this country, there is no loss of dignity of significant intrusion into privacy in the exposure of arms.

The Court further pointed out, citing Blackford v. United States, 247 F.2d 745, 750 (9th Cir. 1957), that inasmuch as illegal importation of narcotics is of substantial concern on the border, inspection of arms is a well-defined and narrowly-circumscribed attempt to find a connection between the entrant and the use of drugs.

Staff: United States Attorney Harry D. Steward
Assistant United States Attorney Thomas M. Coffin

EXPERT TESTIMONY UNNECESSARY TO SHOW PRESCRIPTIONS WRITTEN BY MEDICAL DOCTOR WERE ISSUED WITHOUT A LEGITIMATE MEDICAL PURPOSE IN ORDER TO SUSTAIN CONVICTION UNDER 21 U.S.C. 841 (a) (1) AND 846.

United States v. Harry F. Larson, M.D. (C.A. 9, May 22, 1974, NO. 73-3109; D.J. 12-017-12C).

Defendant, Dr. Harry F. Larson, was convicted of nine substantive counts of distributing a controlled substance in violation of 21 U.S.C. 841(a)(1) and of conspiracy to violate 21 U.S.C. 841(a)(1) as proscribed by 21 U.S.C. 846.

Defendant was dispensing drugs and prescriptions in inordinately large quantities, with advice that the prescriptions be taken to different drug stores because of Bureau of Narcotic and Dangerous Drug Surveillance.

The court held that the government is not required to produce expert testimony showing prescriptions written by a medical doctor were issued without a legitimate medical purpose in order to sustain a conviction under 21 U.S.C. 841(a)(1) and 846. The court adapted the theory of Linder v. United States, 268 U.S. 18, 45 S.C. 449 (1 Cir. 1973). In Linder, the court said "what constitutes bona fide medical practice must be determined upon consideration of evidence and attending circumstances."

The court in effect recognized the class of cases where testimony of witnesses is so damaging and conclusive against the defendant that expert testimony is not needed to prove

illegal distribution of controlled substances by a physician.

Staff: United States Attorney William D. Keller

DISTRICT COURT

OFFICIAL IMMUNITY

DISMISSAL OF ACTION AGAINST PRESIDENTIAL ASSISTANT
BASED ON DOCTRINE OF IMMUNITY; DOCTRINE NOT APPLIED TO
VOLUNTEER ADVANCEMAN.

Nathan Gardels v. Peter C. Murphy, William Henkel
(N.D. Illinois, No. 73-C-2336, May 28, 1974; D.J. 145-1-312).

On June 15, 1973, President Nixon visited Pekin, Illinois for the dedication of the Dirksen library. Plaintiffs alleged, and defendant Murphy admitted, that during the course of a peaceful anti-administration demonstration, Murphy inter alia tore down signs of protest. Plaintiffs also alleged a conspiracy between Henkel, a presidential assistant as Director of Advance Office, and Murphy, et.al., to suppress freedom of speech, demonstration, and assembly in the presence of the President.

I. The Court dismissed the count against Henkel both with respect to its prayer for damages due to the doctrine of official immunity and with respect to its prayer for injunctive relief due to its inappropriateness. In the alternative, the Court granted summary judgment in favor of Henkel.

The Court read Barr v. Matteo, 360 U.S. 564 (1959) and Bivens v. Six Unknown Agents of the Federal Bureau of Narcotics, 403 U.S. 388 (1971), on remand, 456 F.2d 1339 (2d Cir. 1972), as dictating that two issues be resolved: (1) taking the allegations of the complaint as true, is there a showing that Henkel was acting within the outer perimeter of his line of duty; and if so (2) was he alleged to be performing the type of "discretionary" function that entitled him to immunity from suit. Construing "acting within line of duty" liberally, the Court found that Henkel's actions were neither manifestly nor palpably beyond his authority. In addition, after acknowledging the principle that the "broader the range of responsibilities and duties, the wider the scope of discretion," the Court determined that Henkel's responsibilities were broad and hence his scope of discretion wide. Although most of the precedents presented to the Court involved Secret Service agents or federal law enforcement

officials, the Court stated:

Nonetheless, a person in the position of Director of Advance Office has sufficiently large responsibilities and potential conflict with the public that he or she should be free to exercise the duties of the office unembarrassed by the fear of damage suits in respect of acts done in the course of those duties--suits which would consume time and energies which would otherwise be devoted to governmental service.

Despite the dismissal of the prayer for damages, the prayer for injunctive relief was still possible. On this question the Court found such relief inappropriate due to the single, non-recurring nature of the event which failed to place it within the case or controversy requirement of Article III. Further, the case presented fell within the spectrum of Laird v. Tatum, 408 U.S. 1 (1972), and Fifth Avenue Peach Parade Committee v. Gray, 480 F.2d 326 (2d Cir. 1973). Since the former failed, so did the instant complaint: "The injunctive prayer is based on mere speculative apprehension and not on a claim of specific present objective harm or a threat of specific future harm."

As an alternative to dismissal, the Court found the case amenable to summary judgment pursuant to Rule 56. After reciting the law with regard to finding a triable issue, the Court quoted sections of affidavits and depositions to illustrate that Henkel gave Murphy's alleged actions no direction, instruction, or authorization.

II. With respect to defendant Murphy, the Court refused to enter summary judgment in his favor and rejected his motion to dismiss.

Murphy contended that he was a private businessman and therefore not a federal official who could be held liable in a federal district court under a Bivens-type cause of action. The Court, assuming arguendo that he was merely a spare-time voluntary advanceman and agent for the Republican Party, was uncertain in light of other factors, e.g., the President's trip was not clearly a partisan campaign trip, that his actions were so "private" as to fail to create sufficient "federal color" for purposes of shouldering liability under Bivens. In addition, the Court ruled that political party agency is not inconsistent with acting under the color of federal authority. Thus there existed a genuine issue precluding summary judgment.

Assuming, for the motion to dismiss, that Murphy was a federal agent or employee or acting under the color of

federal authority, the Court determined that his job description left him with no discretion. To the question asked in Bivens, "does the performance of his duties warrant the protection of the immunity defenses?," the Court responded in the negative.

Murphy also contended that plaintiffs failed to state a cause of action insofar as Bivens was limited to only Fourth Amendment violations. The Court rejected that interpretation of the case.

Staff: United States Attorney James R. Thompson
Assistant United States Attorney James K. Toohy

*

*

*